# Philippine Canine Club, Inc.



# DOG REGISTRATION RULES

&

### **REGULATIONS**

http://www.pccionline.org.ph/E-mail: pcci@i-manila.com.ph

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

FOREWORD	2
Chapter I - GENERAL EXPLANATIONS	3
Chapter II – MEMBERSHIP	3
Chapter III - REGISTRABLE BREEDSFCI GROUPINGS	
Chapter IV – LITTER REGISTRATION	<i>7</i>
Chapter V – KENNEL NAME	12
Chapter VI - IDENTIFICATION AND RECORDS	14
Chapter VII - TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP	15
Chapter VIII - REGISTRATION OF IMPORTED DOG	16
Chapter IX – LISTING OF DOG WITHOUT PEDIGREE CERTIFICATE	18
Chapter X – LIST OF RECOGNIZED FOREIGN REGISTRY ORGANIZATIONS  American Kennel Club  The Canadian Kennel Club  The Kennel Club  FCI Member Countries	18 19 19
Chapter XI - REFUSAL OR CANCELLATION OF REGISTRATION APPLICATION	19

#### **FOREWORD**

The Philippine Canine Club, Inc, was formed principally for the protection and advancement of purebred dogs. The objects of the corporation as stated in its Articles of Incorporation are "to adopt and enforce uniform rules governing dog shows and field trials, to regulate the conduct of persons interested in exhibiting, breeding, and registering dogs, to detect and prevent frauds in connection therewith, to protect the interests of its members, to maintain and publish an official stud book and an official kennel gazette, and generally to do everything to advance the study, breeding, exhibiting, running and maintenance of the purity of purebred dogs."

Section 6, Article IV of the By-Laws states that "the Board of Directors shall formulate rules regarding the registration of dogs, the conduct of dog shows and field/obedience trials as well as the conduct of persons interested in exhibiting, breeding, and/or registering dogs, shall have the power to discipline any individual member or association for conduct which has been found to have ben prejudicial to the best interests of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. and/or the prebred dog sport". This book contains such by-laws, rules and regulations as affect the registration of purebred dogs.

Forms for the registration of purebred dogs or of a litter of purebred dogs may be obtained by writing to or calling in person at the offices of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc.

#### **Chapter I - GENERAL EXPLANATIONS**

- **Section 1.** The word "dog" wherever used in these Rules and Regulations includes both sexes.
- **Section 2.** The words "Philippines" wherever used in these Rules and Regulations shall be construed to include all territories and possessions of the Philippine and all vessels sailing under the Philippine Flag.
- **Section 3.** The abbreviation PCCI refers to the Philippine Canine Club, Inc., FCI refers to "Federation Cynologique Internationale".
- **Section 4.** The word "member" wherever used in these Rules and Regulations includes both Lifetime, Regular and Associate members of the PCCI.

#### **Chapter II – MEMBERSHIP**

- **Section 1.** Any person who is interested in the purpose/s for which PCCI exists and who shall satisfactorily fulfill other requirements as prescribed by the Board of Directors may be admitted as a member.
- **Section 2.** Any person residing in the Philippines who wish to register dog/dogs to his/her name must apply to become a member or must be a member in good standing of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc.

#### **Chapter III - REGISTRABLE BREEDS**

**Section 1.** The breeds of purebred dogs divided by groups now recognized by the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. as being distinct breeds of purebred dogs eligible for registration in the Stud Book of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. are listed below:

#### FCI GROUPINGS

Group 1	Sheepdogs and Cattle Dogs (except Swiss	Cattle Dogs)
Australian Cattle Dog	Ceskoslovensky Vlcak	Polski Owczarek Nizinny
Bearded Collie	Collie (smooth)	Polski Owczarek Podhalanski
Berger Belge	Collie Rough	Puli
Berger de Beauce	Deutscher Schaeferhund	Pumi
Berger de Brie	Esquimau	Rastreador Brasileiro (Supprime)
Berger De Picardie	Gos D'Atura Catala	Saarlos Wolfhond
Berger des Pyrenees A Face Rase	Grahund (Supprime)	Schapendoes
Berger des Pyrenees A Poil Long	Hollandse Herdershond	Schipperke
Border Collie	Hrvatski Ovcar	Shanshu (Supprime)
Bouvier des Ardennes (Suspende)	Ioujnorousskaia Ovtcharka	Shetland Sheepdog
Bovier des Flandres	Japanese Middle Size Dog (Supprime)	Slovensky Cuvac
Ca De Bestiar	Kelpie	Steinbracke (Supprime)
Cane da Pastore Bergamasco	Komondor	Welsh Corgi Cardigan
Cane Gra Pastore Maremmano- Abruzzese	Kuvasz	Welsh Corgi Pembroke
Cao da Serra de Aires	Mudi	
Cao Fila de Sao Miguel	Old English Sheepdog	

Group 2	Pinscher and Schanuzer - Molossoid Bro	eeds - Swiss Mountain and Cattle Dogs
Affenpinscher	Dogue de Bordeaux	Newfoundland
Aidi	Do-Khyi	Osterreichischer Kurzh. Pinscher
Appenzeller Sennenhund	Entelbucher Sennenhund	Ovczarski Pas-Sarplaninac
Berner Sennenhund	Fila Brasilereiro	Pinscher
Broholmer	Grosse Schweizer Sennenhund	Rafeiro do Alentejo
Bulldog	Harlekinpinscher (Supprime)	Reisenschnauzer
Bullmastiff	Hollandse Smoushond	Rottweiler
Cao de Castro Laoreiro	Hovarwart	Schnauzer
Cao Gra Serra Gra Estrella	Kavkazskaia Ovtcharka	Shar Pei
Chien de Montagne des Pyrenees	Kraski Ovcar	Sredneasiatskaia Ovtcharka
Chien de Trait Belge (En Suspens)	Landseer (TCE)	St. Bernhardshund
Coban Koepegi	Leonberger	Tchiorny Terrier
Deutsche Dogge	Mastiff	Tosa
Deutscher Boxer	Mastin de los Pirineos	Zwergpinscher
Dobermann	Mastin Espanol	Zwergschnauzer
Dogo Argentino	Mastino Napoletano	

Group 3	Terriers	
Airedale Terrier	Fox Terrier (smooth)	Parson Jack Russell Terrier
American Staffordshire Terrier	Fox Terrier Wire	Scottish Terrier
Australian Silky Terrier	Irish Glen of Imaal Terrier	Sealyham Terrier
Australian Terrier	Irish Soft Coated Wheaten Terrier	Skye Terrier
Bedlington Terrier	Irish Terrier	Staffordshire Bull Terrier

Border Terrier
Cairn Terrier
Cesky Terier
Dandee Dinmont Terrier
Deutscher Jagdterrier
English Bull Terrier

Kerry Blue Terrier	
Lakeland Terrier	
Manchester Terrier	
Nihon Teria	
Norfolk Terrier	
Norwich Terrier	
Norwich Terrier	

Terrier Brasileiro
Toy Terrier
Welsh Terrier
West Highland White Terrier
Yorkshire Terrier

Group 4	Dachshunds
Dachshund	

Group 5	Spitz and Primitive types	·
Akita	Korean Jindo Dog	Samoiedskaia Sabaka
Alaskan Malamute	Lapinporokoira	Shiba
Basenji	Nihon Supittsu	Shikoku
Canaan Dog	Norrbottenspets	Siberian Husky
Chow Chow	Norsk Buhund	Soumenlapinkoira
Cirneco Dell'Etna	Norsk Elghund Gra	Suomenpystykorva (Finsk Spets)
Deutscher Spitz	Norsk Elghund Sort	Svensk Lapphund
Eurasier	Norsk Lundehund	Thai Ridgeback Dog
Gronlandshund	Pedenco Ibicenco	Vasgotaspets
Hokkaido	Pedenco Portugues	Volpino Italiano
Islandsk Farehond	Perro de Presa Mallorquin	Vostotchno-Sibirskaia Laika
Jamthund	Perro Sin Pelo Del Peru	Xoloitzquintle
Kai	Pharaoh Hound	Zapadno-Sibirskaia Laika
Karjalankarhukoira	Podenco Canario	
Kishu	Russko-Evropeiskaia Laika	

Group 6
Alpenlaendische
American Fox Hound
Anglo-Français De Petite Venerie
Ariegeois
Artesien Normand (Supprime)
Balkanski Gonic
Basset Artesien Normand
Basset Bleu de Bretagne
Basset d'Artois
Basset Fauve de Bretagne
Basset Hound
Bayrischer Gebirgsschweisshund
Beagle
Beagle Harrier
Billy
Black and Tan Coonhound
Bosanski Ostrodlaki Gonic-Barak

Scenthounds and Related Breeds	
English Foxhound	
Erdelyi Kopo	
Fancais Tricolore	
Français Blanc Et Noir	
Français Blanc et Orange	
Gascon Saintongeois	
Grand Anglo-Français Blanc & Orange	
Grand Anglo-Français Blanc et Noir	
Grand Anglo-Francais Tricolore	
Grand Basset Griffon Vendeen	
Grand Bleu de Gascogne	
Grand Griffon Vendeen	
Griffon Bleu de Gascogne	
Griffon Fauve de Bretagne	
Griffon Nivernais	
Haldenstover	
Hamilton Stovare	

Normand-Pointevin (Supprime)
Oesterreichische Glatthaar. Bracke
Ogar Polski
Otterhound
Petit Basset Griffon Vendeen
Petit Bleu de Gascogne
Planinsky Gonic
Poitevin
Porcelaine
Posavski Gonic
Rhodesian Ridgeback
Sabueso Espanol
Schiller Stovare
Schweizerische Laufhunde
Schweizerische Niederlaufhunde
Segugio Italiano a Pelo Forte
Segugio Italiano A Pelo Raso

Hannover'scher Schweisshund
Harrier
Hellinokos Ichnilatis
Hygenhund
Istarski Kratkodlaki Gonic
Istarski Ostrodlaki Gonic
Jugoslavensky Trobojni Gonic
Levesque (Supprime)

Slovensky Kopov
Smalandsstovare
Soumenajokoira (Finsk Stovare)
Steirischer Rauh. Hochgebirgsbracke
Tiroler Bracke
Westfaelische Dachsbracke

Group 7	Pointing Dogs	
Bracco Italiano	Drentsche Partijshond	Irish Red and White Setter
Braque Belge (En Suspens)	English Pointer	Irish Red Setter
Braque D'Auvergne	English Setter	Kleiner Munsterlander Vorstehhund
Braque de Bordeaux	Epagneul Picard	Perdigueiro Portugues
Braque de L'Ariege	Epagneul Bleu de Picardie	Perdiguero de Burgos
Braque du Bourbonnais	Epagneul Breton	Pudelpointer
Braque Dupoy	Epagneul de Pont-Audemer	Rovidszoru Magyar Vizsla
Braque Français - Type Gascogne	Epagneul Français	Slovensky Hrubosrsty Stavac (Ohar)
Braque Français - Type Pyrenees	Gammel Gransk Honsehund	Spinone Itlaiano
Cesky Fousek	Gordon Setter	Stabyhon
Deutscher Drahthaariger Vorstehhund	Griffon A Poil Laineux	Weimaraner
Deutscher Kurzhaariger Vorstehhund	Griffon D'Arret A Poil Dur	
Deutscher Langhaariger Vorstehhund	Grosser Munsterlander Vorstehhund	
Deutscher Stichelh-Vorstehhund	Grrotzoru Magyar Vizsla	

Group 8	<b>Retrievers - Flushing Dogs - Water Dogs</b>	
American Cocker	English Cocker Spaniel	Lagotto Romagnolo
American Water Spaniel	English Springer Spaniel	Nova Scotia Duck Tolling Retriever
Barbet	Field Spaniel	Perro de Agua Espanol
Cao de Agua	Flat Coated Retriever	Sussex Spaniel
Chesapeake Bay Retriever	Golden Retriever	Welsh Springer Spaniel
Clumber Spaniel	Irish Water Spaniel	Wetterhon
Curly Coated Retriever	Kooikerhondje	
Deutscher Wachtelhund	Labrador Retriever	

Group 9	Companion and Toy Dogs	
Bichon A Poil Frise	Chinese Crested Dog	Pekingese
Bichon Havanais	Coton de Tulear	Petit Brabancon
Bolognese	Epagneul Nain Continental	Petit Chien Lion
Boston Terrier	Griffon Belge	Pug
Bouledogue Français	Griffon Bruxellois	Shih Tzu
Caniche	King Charles Spaniel	Tibetan Spaniel
Cavalier King Charles Spaniel	Kromfohrlander	Tibetan Terrier

Chihuahua Chin	Lhasa Apso Maltese	
Group 10	Sighthounds	
Afghan Hound	Galgo Espanol	Sloughi
Azawakh	Greyhound	Whippet
Barzaia	Irish Wolfhound	

Magyar Agar

Piccolo Levriero Italiano Saluki

**Section 2.** The Board of Directors of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. may add other breeds to the list of registrable breeds as indicated from the above list of breeds of purebred dogs. The Board of Directors also may remove any breed from the said list of registrable breeds or may transfer any breed from one group to another group whenever in its opinion sufficient evidence presented to the Board to justify such removal or transfer.

Chart Polski

Deerhound

#### **Chapter IV – LITTER REGISTRATION**

- **Section 1.** The breeder(s) of a dog is the person or persons who owned the dam of that dog at the time of whelping.
- **Section 2.** The Philippine bred dog is a dog whelped in the Philippines by reason of a mating, which took place in the Philippines.
- **Section 3.** Any person in good standing with the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. may apply for the registration of any purebred dog or litter of purebred dogs owned by him by becoming a member of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. and by supplying the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. with such information and complying with such conditions as it shall require.
- **Section 4.** Litter whelped in the Philippines (both Sire and Dam are PCCI Registered):
  - a. No individual dog from a litter whelped in the Philippines of which both parents are registered with the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. shall be eligible for registration unless the litter has first been registered by the person who owned the dam at the time of whelping. Further that an application to register such litter is filed with the Philippine Canine

Club, Inc. no later than six (6) months from the date of whelping of the litter. The owner of a litter eligible for registration shall first register a PCCI kennel affix acceptable to the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. and FCI Kennel Name approved by the FCI before the litter can be registered. All eligible litters of the owner with a registered kennel name affix shall be registrable for as long as the kennel name affix remains active.

- b. An application to register a litter filed with the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. more than six (6) months from date of whelping may still be considered for registration, provided that the following have to be complied:
  - i. More that six (6) months of age but under one (1) year old
    - a. Penalty as to be determined by the Board of Directors beginning on the six month of the puppies up to the date of registration with the Philippine Canine Club, Inc.
    - b. Puppies must have microchip or tattoo identification
  - ii. One (1) year old and over
    - a. Penalty as to be determined by the Board of Directors.
    - b. Puppies must have microchip or tattoo identification
    - c. Affidavit stating the reason for late registration
- c. No dog or litter out of a dam under eight (8) months or over ten (10) years of age at the time of mating will be registered.
- d. No dog may stand as stud under eight (8) months or over twelve (12) years of age at the time of mating unless the application for registration shall be accompanied by an affidavit or evidence which shall prove the fact to the satisfaction of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc.
- e. No litter of purebred dogs and/or no single purebred dog which shall be determined by the Philippine Canine Club, Inc, to be acceptable in all other respects for registration, shall be barred from registration.

That member or those members refusing without cause to sign the application form or forms necessary for the registration of a litter of purebred dogs or of a single purebred dog or to sign the transfer of ownership for the recording of the transfer of change of ownership of said single purebred dog, and that member or those members refusing without cause to pay the necessary fees due from him, her or them to be paid in order to complete the chain of title to a purebred litter or a purebred single dog sought to be registered to record the transfer or change of ownership of a single purebred because of the failure, by the legal owner of all or part of the said litter, or said single dog to obtain some one or more of the signatures needed to complete the applicant's chain of title to the litter or dog sought to be registered, unless that person who, when requested, refuses to sign the application form shall furnish a reason therefore satisfactory to the Philippine Canine Club, Inc., such as the fact that at the time of service an agreement in writing was made between the owner or lessee of the sire and the owner or lessee of the dam to the effect that no application for registration should be made and/or that the produce of such union must secure from the new owner a statement in writing that he receives such produce upon the understanding that it shall not be registered.

- f. For the purpose of registering or refusing to register purebred dogs, the Philippine Canine Club, Inc., will recognize only such conditional sale or conditional stud agreement affecting the registration of purebred dogs as are in writing and are shown to have been brought to the attention of the applicant for registration. The Philippine Canine Club, Inc. cannot recognize alleged conditional sale, conditional stud or other agreements not in writing which affect the registration of purebred dogs, until after the existence, construction and/or effect of the same shall have been determined by an action at law.
- g. The owner or owners of the sire and the dam must be members in good standing of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. at the time of registration of the litters.
- h. The owner or owners of a stud dog purebred and eligible for registration who in print or otherwise asserts or assert it to be purebred and eligible for registration and on the strength of such registration. The owner or owners of a brood bitch purebred and eligible for

registration who in print or otherwise asserts or assert it to be purebred and eligible for registration and on the strength of such assertion leases it or sells its produce or secures the use of a stud by promising a puppy or puppies as payment of the stud fee in lieu of cash, must pay the cost of its registration.

- i. That member or those members refusing without cause to sign the application form or forms necessary for the registration of a litter of purebred dogs or of a single purebred dog or to sign the transfer of ownership application of a single purebred dog necessary for the recording of the transfer or change of ownership of said single purebred dog, and that member or those members refusing without cause to pay the necessary fees due from him, her or them to be paid in order to complete the chain of title to a purebred litter or a purebred single dog sought to be registered or to record the transfer or change of ownership of a single purebred dog, when requested by the Philippine Canine Club, Inc., or fined as the Board of Directors of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc., or denied privileges of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc., or denied privileges of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc., or denied privileges of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc., or denied privileges of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc., or denied privileges of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc.
- j. The registration of a single purebred dog out of a litter eligible for registration may be secured by its legal owner as a one-dog litter registration and the balance of the litter may be refused registration where the breeder or the owner of the dam at the time of whelping wrongfully has refused to register the litter and that member or those members so wrongfully refusing shall be suspended from the privileges of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. or fined as the Board of Directors of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. may direct or denied privileges of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc.

#### **Section 5.** Litter whelped outside of the Philippines:

- a. A litter whelped outside the Philippines is not eligible for registration with the Philippine Canine Club, Inc.
- b. A member of a litter whelped outside the Philippines produced by a PCCI registered Sire and Dam, may be considered for individual PCCI registration after the dog is imported into the Philippines by a

resident of the Philippines provided that the litter was registered with the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. and provided further that the registration is in accordance with the procedures for registration of an imported dog as prescribed in Chapter I except that the documents accompanying the application for registration need not include a Pedigree Certificate.

#### **Section 6.** Naming of Puppies

- a. The puppies out of a litter eligible for registration shall be named by the owner of the litter at the time of registering the litter.
- b. The names of the puppies shall include a kennel affix and all the names (excluding the kennel name affix) shall begin with the same letter.
- c. The names of the puppies shall not contain more than twenty-seven (27) spaces including the spaces and breeder's kennel affix.
- d. No obscene names may be used.
- e. The use of numbers is not permitted
- f. A name once registered shall not be used again for another dog.
- g. The name of a puppy in the registered litter shall be the name under which the puppy will be registered as an individual dog in the Stud Book of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc.
- h. No change in the name of a dog registered with the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. will be allowed.

#### **Section 7.** Bitch imported in whelp:

a. A litter whelped in the Philippines, by reason of a mating which took place outside the Philippines between a PCCI-registered (or registrable) Dam and a foreign owned Sire, may be considered for registration under a special litter registration application with the Philippine Canine Club, Inc., provided that in the case of a registrable

dam, the individual PCCI registration of the Dam, imported in whelp, has been effected and provided further that the Sire's credentials meet the same requirements as for dogs imported into the Philippines and provided finally that, the completed special litter registration applications is accompanied by:

- i. A legible copy of the official three-generation Pedigree of the Sire issued by the registry organization in the Sire's country of birth.
- ii. The Stud Certificate issued by the registry organization in whose Stud Book the Sire is registered, or an official letter from that registry organization, which must verity, with its official Club Seal and authorized signature, that the person signing as owner of the Sire was, in fact, the recorded owner of the dog at the time the mating occurred and that the foreign Sire was mated to the bitch named on the PCCI Litter Registration Application Form.

#### **Chapter V – KENNEL NAME**

#### **Section 8.** Kennel Name –

- a. On and after the October 1, 1963, applications for the use of a kennel name as an affix in the registering of litters to the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. on a form which will be supplied by said Club upon request, and said application must be accompanied by a fee, the amount of which shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. The Board will then consider such applications and if it approves of the name selected, will grant the right to the use of such name only as an affix for a period of five (5) consecutive years.
- b. The recorded owner shall have first consideration of the grant to use said kennel name for an additional five (5) years term or for life upon receipt of the application for renewal accompanied by the renewal fee, the amount of which shall be determined by the Board of Directors, when received before the date of expiration of the original grant but

the grant for any five (5) consecutive renewal term will be made only at the expiration of the previous five-year term.

- c. In the event of the death of a recorded owner of a registered kennel name, his executors, administrators or legal heirs, upon submission of proper proof of their status may use the name as an affix during the remainder of the five (5) year term of use and the legal heir of the deceased recorded owner, or the executors of administrators acting in his behalf, shall have first consideration of the grant to the use of said name for additional terms, as provided heretofore in this section.
- d. If the recorded owner of a registered kennel name granted after October 1, 1963, desires to transfer ownership of or an interest in said kennel name to a new owner, application to transfer such name for the unexpired term must be made to the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. On a form which will be supplied by said Club upon request. The application must be submitted for the approval of the Board of Directors of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. and accompanied by a fee, the amount of which shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc.
- e. In the case of any registered kennel name which is recorded as jointly owned by two or more members, application to transfer the interest of one co-owner, may be made to the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. on a form which will be supplied by said Club upon request. The application must be submitted for the approval of the Board of Directors of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. But no fee will be charged for such a transfer.
- f. No person may use another person's Kennel affix without written consent of the owner and a copy of the consent submitted to the Philippine Canine Club, Inc.
- g. The protection of all kennel names shall depend upon the continuous use by the registered owner(s). Priority is given to the previous owner provided the renewal is made within six (6) months from expiration. After six (6) months, the kennel affix will be considered "abandoned" and therefore can be applied by any member.

h. The Philippine Canine Club, Inc. will not protect any member against the use by any other member of a kennel name in the registration of dogs with the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. unless the kennel name has been registered with the Philippine Canine Club, Inc.

i. Kennel Names must be registered with the Federation Cynologique Internationale (FCI) through the PCCI Office. As of this writing, the FCI charges a one-time fee for such registration if approved by the FCI. The Kennel Names will be listed with the FCI in its list of Kennel Names recognized amongst the FCI member countries. Once the Kennel Name is registered with the FCI directory, it may not be duplicated or registered again as per FCI ruling.

#### **Chapter VI - IDENTIFICATION AND RECORDS**

**Section 1.** The word "dog" as used in this chapter includes a dog or puppy of any age and either sex.

**Section 2.** Each member who breeds, keeps, transfers ownership or possession of, or deals in dogs which are registered or to be registered with the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. whether he acts as principal or agent or sells on consignment, must make in connection therewith and preserve for five (5) years adequate and accurate records. The Board of Directors shall by regulation designate the specific information, which must be included in such records.

**Section 3.** The Philippine Canine Club, Inc. or its duly authorized representative shall have the right to inspect the records required to be kept and the practices required to be followed by these rules and by any regulations adopted under them, and to examine any dog registered or to be registered with the Philippine Canine Club, Inc.

**Section 4.** Each member who transfers ownership or possession of a dog that is registered with the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. must describe the dog in the records of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. in writing to the person acquiring the dog at the time of transfer, either on a bill of sale or otherwise. The Board of Directors shall by regulation designate the descriptive information required.

**Section 5.** The Philippine Canine Club, Inc. may refuse to register any dog or litter of to record the transfer of any dog, for the sole reason that the application is

not supported by the records required by these rules and regulation adopted under them.

- a. Any member who is required to keep records and who fails to do so, or who fails or refuses when requested to make such records available for inspection by the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. or its duly authorized representatives may be suspended from all privileges by the Board of Directors.
- b. Any member who fails to follow such practices as will preclude any possibility of error in the identification of an individual dog or doubt as to the parentage of a particular dog or litter, or who fails or refuses to permit the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. or its duly authorized representatives to examine such practices, or to examine a dog that is registered or to be registered with the Philippine Canine Club, Inc., may be suspended from all privileges of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. or be denied such privileges by the Board of Directors.

#### **Chapter VII - TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP**

#### **Section 1.** Transfer of Ownership to the new owner.

- a. The original Pedigree Certificate of the dog must be sent or submitted to the PCCI office.
- b. Section A at the back of the Registration and Pedigree Certificate must be completed and signed by the former/registered owner and co-owner, if any.
- c. Section B at the back of the Registration and Pedigree Certificate must be completed and signed by the new owner and co-owner if any.
- d. If a dog has again been transferred, and sections A and B had already been filed-out, please do not make any corrections or alterations. You will have to use the Supplemental Transfer Statement Form to be signed on Section C by the person named on Section B of the Registration and Pedigree Certificate. The new owner will then accomplish and sign on Section D.

#### **Chapter VIII - REGISTRATION OF IMPORTED DOG**

**Section 1.** A dog whelped outside of the Philippines may be eligible for registration in the PCCI Stud Book when imported in the Philippines, provided that:

- a. The imported dog is of a breed eligible for individual registration in the PCCI Stud Book or PCCI Waiting List;
- b. The imported dog was registered in its country of birth with the registry organization recognized by the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. as enumerated under Chapter X .
- c. The Certified Export Pedigree for the dog issued by the foreign registry organization contains at least three generation of ancestry, establishing that each dog in the three generations was of the same breed and registered in its country of birth with one of the registry organizations recognized by the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. as listed under Chapter X. Each dog named in the three generations must be identified by its registered name and registration number. The Certified Export Pedigree and other official documentation issued by the foreign registry organization, must also include the official Transfer of Ownership and date of transfer to the Philippine importer, verifying that the transfer was recorded with the foreign registry organization; (A Pedigree issued by a foreign registry organization named in the list is not automatically acceptable for PCCI registration of the dog represented by the Pedigree. Each Pedigree and accompanying documentation will be examined in order to determine whether it is acceptable under the policies and regulations established by the Board of Directors of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc.
- d. Where it is in practice or an accepted mode of identification in the country of origin, imported dogs being registered with the Philippine Canine Club Inc. are required to have positive identification such as tattoo or microchip identification.

e. The owner shall submit clear copies of documents proving the arrival of the imported dog and its presence in the Philippines which documents shall include but may not be limited to:

- i. The import permit issued by the Philippine Bureau of Animal Industry, and the Philippine Bureau of Customs receipt of tax payment if taxes were paid.
- ii. Airway Bill in the case of dogs imported as cargo or the airline excess baggage ticket or receipt in the case of dogs imported as excess baggage.
- iii. If the supporting documents are misplaced or lost, the owner should execute an affidavit that he/she lost the supporting documents and must be accompanied with two (2) color photographs, providing close-up front and side views of the dog in a standing position. The photographs should be no smaller than 3 x 4 inches in size.
- **Section 2.** The imported dog must be registered with the same name under which it was registered in its country of birth. A Registered Name Prefix or Kennel Name may not be added to the registered name of an imported dog.
- **Section 3.** Certified Export Pedigree Certificates and Registration Certificates issued by registry organizations written in a language other than English must be accompanied by official translations prepared by recognized translation service agencies unless otherwise specified by the Board of Directors of the Philippine Canine Club Inc.
- **Section 4.** After approval of the registration of the imported dogs, the original Certified Export Pedigree and Registration Certificates shall be returned to the importer and the copies shall be retained and shall become a property of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc.
- **Section 5.** A dog registered with a recognized foreign registry organization and a litter resulting from a mating between a PCCI registered (or registrable) Dam and a Sire registered with a recognized foreign registry organization does not automatically make it eligible for registration in the PCCI Stud Book.

**Section 6.** The Board of Directors of the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. reserves the right to revise, add to, replace or waive any and all the above requirements at any time.

#### **Chapter IX – LISTING OF DOG WITHOUT PEDIGREE CERTIFICATE**

**Section 1.** Breeds - All breeds that are recognized by the Philippine Canine Club, Inc. or any of its recognized foreign registry organizations.

#### **Section 2.** Procedures:

- a. The owner must fill-up the Listing Application Form.
- b. The PCCI will schedule the inspection of the dog for evaluation by a judge who is licensed for the breed. (Inspection may be done at the PCCI or PCCI sanctioned dog shows)
- c. The Licensed Judge may approve or disapprove the application.
- d. If the application is approved, the dog will be required to have either TATOO or MICROCHIP identification.
- e. Listing fee is only Php500.00 plus VAT
- f. The owner must apply to become a PCCI member if not yet a member.
- g. The dog will then be issued with a PCCI LISTING CERTIFICATE.
- h. The listed dog should be mated only to a full-pedigreed dog.

## Chapter X – LIST OF RECOGNIZED FOREIGN REGISTRY ORGANIZATIONS

#### **American Kennel Club**

5580 Centerview Drive Raleigh, NC 27606-3390 www.akc.org info@akc.org

#### The Canadian Kennel Club

89 Skyway Avenue, Suite 100 Etobicoke, Ontario M9W 6R4 www.ckc.ca information@ckc.ca

#### The Kennel Club

1-5 Clarges Street Piccadilly London W1J 8AB www.thekennelclub.org.uk Telephone: 0870 606 6750

Fax: 020 7518 1058

#### **FCI Member Countries**

## Chapter XI - REFUSAL OR CANCELLATION OF REGISTRATION APPLICATION

- **Section 1.** The registration will be refused if the age of the dam is under eight (8) months or over twelve (10) years old at the time of mating, or the age of the sire is under eight (8) months old or over twelve (12) years old at the time of mating.
- **Section 2.** The gestation period is abnormally short or long.
- **Section 3.** Any forgery of any signature on the application will result in the cancellation of the application and subject the filer to an investigation by the Club and possible criminal prosecution under the Philippine laws.
- **Section 4.** Any member found guilty of falsification by registering more puppies than that actually born in the litter or putting any other false data in the application, will be suspended or expelled by the Club.

#### Prepared by the Registration Committee

Chairman - Mr. Ronnie Natividad Members - Mr. Florentino Bustos

> Mr. Albert Dichaves Mr. Danny Ramillano Mr. Milo Valdes

#### Approved by the Board of Directors on April 3, 2008.

President - Mr. Augusto Benedicto Santos III

1<sup>st</sup> Vice-President
 2<sup>nd</sup> Vice-President
 Mr. Ronnie Natividad
 Mr. Roland Gapuz
 Corporate Secretary
 Mr. Florentino Bustos
 Corporate Treasurer
 Mr. Danny Ramillano
 Directors:
 Mr. Eugene Chua

Mr. Robert Dawson Mr. Albert Dichaves Mr. Johnny Filart Ms. Alice Juico Ms. Marivic Lim Mr. Reynato Puno, Jr.

Ms. Maribel Sy

Mr. Milo Valdes

Revised: March 16, 2017